ATTENTION: ALL EARLY HEAD START
PARENTS

Policy Council
Meeting

City of Albuquerque / Early Head Start
Wednesday, December 18th, 2019
Trumbull Early Head Start Center
419 Pennsylvania SE—5:30-7:00 pm

For questions, please call the Main Office @

505-767-6500

Interpreter services (in Spanish) will be provided *

Come and enjoy dinner & child care provided onsite for

children 12 years and under**

ONE J
nLBUQHE e,




R

City of Albuquerque
Division of Child and Family Development
Early Head Start
Policy Council

December 18, 2019

Establish Quorum

Approval of Minutes

Governing Board Report

Director Report
a. Enrollment
b. Attendance and Meal Counts
¢. Budget (Financial Statements)
d. School Readiness
e. Family Engagement

New Business
a. Policy Approval

i. Code of Conduct

Approval Disapproval Other Action
ii. Reporting

Approval Disapproval Other Action
iii. Child Health and Safety

Approval Disapproval Other Action
iv. Child Abuse and Neglect

Approval Disapproval Other Action
v. Active Supervision

Approval Disapproval Other Action

Adjournment
Next Meeting Date: January 15, 2019



.

City of Albuquerque
Department of Family and Community Services
Division of Child and Family Development
Early Head Start
POLICY COUNCIL
Wednesday, June 19, 2019

Establish Quorum: Stephanie Pickup, Sheena King, Victoria Padilla, Martha Lara-Delgado,
Maggie Gonzales, Kristi Sanchez, Penny Chavez, John & Shelly Rank, Tommy Folmar,
Ugochukwu Uzokwelu, Karen Lucero, and COA staff — Shana Runck/Division Manager,
Devona Duran/EHS Program Manager and Robi Ruiz/EHS Education Specialist. Meeting
called to order at 6:35 pm.

Approval of Minutes: Minutes from last Policy Council meeting on 05/15/19 were
reviewed.
* Motion to approve May 15, 2019 minutes by Sheena King (1*) & Martha Lara-
Delgado (2"}, unanimous consent; Motion approved.

Governing Board Report: Nicole Taylor was not present to provide updates:
a) Updates - None

Director Reports:
Component Reports:

1. Enroliment. Total funded enroliment of 128 slots, 104 for center based and 24 for
home based. Total reportable enrollment at 128; center 104 and home based 24.
Enrollment Vacancies — there are no vacancies at this time. Vacancies are not
reported to the Office of Head Start until the enrollment slot has been vacated over
30 days; Head Start Program Performance Standard (HSPPS) Enroliment 1302.15.

2. Enrollment Monthly Summary. New Enrollment-families (9}, children (9), pregnant
moms (0), number of children born (2); total new enrollment {11). Total leaving
program (9) - graduating children (3}, pregnant moms giving birth (2), children
leaving (4), pregnant moms leaving {0). Children up to date on Immunizations (120),
children up to date as possible on immunizations (2), children not up to date (6).
New item - Eligibility Category — income eligible (79), TANF/SSI {9), Foster Child (8),
Homeless (2) — total (98} children. Over income {27), Over 130% (3), Children
w/IFSPs (31).

3. Attendance - Head Start Program Performance Standard (HSPPS) Attendance
1302.16 (b) indicates 85% attendance rate or better for center based program. This
is an ongoing challenge. Reporting period is 7/01/18-5/31/19, most common
excuses health reasons, parent choice, and unknown.

City operated Early Head Start centers classroom attendance rates;
La Mesa 65.22%,
MacArthur 71.56%,
Plaza Feliz 78.03%
School on wheels 74.69%
Singing Arrow 85.62%
Trumbull 79.75%
Western Trails 60.00%

NNENEEHEBA



10.

11.

12,

Overall center based program attendance totals — 73.57%,; total number of
children absent - 89,
Meal Counts — Reporting period of 07/01/18-5/31/19. Total number of meals for
{0-3 years in age), total children served {1534), Breakfast (1509), Am snack (1),
Lunch (1502), PM snack {1343), Supper {0).
Budget - Financial statements provided to policy council membership:
a) Federal Grant — year to date (YTD) expenditures $1,129,183
b) Training/Technical Assistance (T/TA) — year to date expenditures $10,902
¢} City Match - year to date expenditures $166,061
*overview provided on operating expenditures & column/underspent percentages *
P-Card Expenditures - Working with Fiscal Department to ensure expenditures are
captured accurately to avoid discrepancies. Reporting period from September 2018
- May 2019.
School Readiness — Robi Ruiz/Education Specialist presented:
a} Center Based — no update
b} Home Based — no update
¢} TS gold and PROMIS — no update
Staffing Update
a} Teaching Assistant C26 & Teacher M12 — 2 candidates recommended for
hire.
b) Family & Community Engagement Specialist vacancy - 1 candidate
recommended for hire.
¢} Temp vacancies — 7 candidates recommended for hire.
Social Emotional Leadership — Early Head Start team {management, home visitors,
and teaching staff} attended Office of Head Start Pyramid Model Training on May
27-29, 2019 in Dallas, Texas. Information was shared with EHS staff during the
professional development training scheduled on June 14, 2019,
Head Start Federal Monitoring Notice - Focus Area One {FA1) - Office of Head Start
Monitoring Report received on May 13, 2019. The program is taking steps to
address the noted Areas of Concern by developing a communication plan to
exclusively inform and ensure participation of the governing body and policy council
in developing goals and improving program services. A training plan, including the
purchase of {Pads for classrooms and for home visitors and onsite training on the
education assessment tool (Teaching Strategies Gold) will be scheduled in July for
management and teaching staff. The program is also in the discussion phase of
switching from the current database management system of PROMIS to ChildPlus.
The modifications to the current infrastructure will ensure accurate child-level
assessment and program data for well-informed program improvements in all
content areas.
Unfinished Business
a) Selected City EHS sites and hours of operations for Extended Care: Western
Trail and Trumbull with hours of operation from 7:30 am - 5:30 pm. Other
sites will be considered as the program continues with hiring of temps.
b} 2019 Division of Child & Family Development — Family Handbook for Early
Head Start.
New Business
a) Officer nominations and membership voting.




V. Action Items:

a) 2019 Division of Child & Family Development — Family Handbook for Early Head
Start

Motion to approve 2019 Division of Child & Family Development ~ Family Handbook
for Early Head Start as written; unanimous consent; Motion approved.

VI, Adjournment - Meeting adjourned at 7:20 pm.

*Next Policy Council Meeting: August 2019 - Meet & Greet @ 5:30 pm at Trumbull
Center*




City of Albuguerque Early Head Start Caseload/Enrollment Report 11/30/19

Enroliment
Total Fundsed Enroliment:
Total Actual Enroliment:
| n Withdrawn & D opped { last 30 davs ):
eportable Enroliment ( actual + withdrawn/dropped ):
Total Deficit:

Program Snapshot

r:‘}cjil]:-:.':_:l:f.:k::'i'- i :1'“]21.‘ _;'A. LR

Funded Enroliment:
Enrollment:

Defficiency:

Home Based Detail
Caseload: 12 slots per home visitor

12 8 10 2 12/29, 3/20 12 0
12 9 9 3 1/15, 2/29,5/2] 12 0
24 19 5 24 o

Center Detail
- | Servable | Enrolled |LeftinL
30

L Ctr Detail I Lapacd :1;'1_- 'iiﬂ[l[. arn

ast | -f{-}u'_h}ulé'.‘[:}[: 9:1'1[‘[_[;[5! Current
Jays Total Placement |  Deficil

U 1-]]

W

[ ) fe] fen] fuu] Fav)

w|o




Monthly Program Information Summa
November 2019

# new enroliments families

# new enrollments children

# new enroliments pregnant mom

# children born to pregnant mom

Total new enroliment

# children graduating

# pregnant moms giving birth

# children leaving before turning 3

# pregnant moms leaving before baby
Total leaving

Children with up to date immunizations

Children up to date as possible on immunizations

Children not up to date on immunizations

Eligibility Category
income eligible
TANF/SSI

Foster Child
Homeless

Qver Income
Over 130%

Children with IFSPs

- 0 O

108

# of children and
pregnant women
75

13

6

3

21
3

# of children
22

% of children up to datefup

to date as possible
93.9

6.1

% of total number of
children and pregnant
women

62

10.7

4.9

2.5

17.4
2.5

% of total number of
children
18.2




Sl City Of Albuquerque EHS o e
E25745 2371 - CACFP Reimbursement Summary
Program Term: EHS 2019 - 2020, Program Option; Standard Full Day
Altendance Date: 11/1/2019 - 11/30/2019
City Of Albuquergue EHS
[ Cperating CACFP CACFP CACFP
Days Free Reduced Paid Breakfast AM Snack Lunch PM Snack Supper
EHS 2019 - 2020
Douglas MacArthur
Infant 14 8 0 0 57 o] 49 42 0
:Toddler 14 8 o] 0 87 1] 87 78 0
Douglas MacArthur 28 15 0 0 144 0 136 120 0
La Mesa
Toddler 14 8 0 0 59 0 52 51 0
' La Mesa 14 8 0 o 59 ] 52 51 V
Plaza Feliz
Toddler 14 8 0 0 59 0 64 58 o
Twos 14 8 0 /] 83 Q 84 &1 1]
Plaza Feliz 28 16 [ ] 142 0 148 119 o]
Schoo! On Wheels
Infant 14 7 0 0 67 0 85 43 0
Toddler 14 9 1] 0 87 0 a7 a0 0
School On Wheels 28 16 0 0 164 ] 162 123 0
Slinging Arrow
Twos 14 -] 0 0 BO 0 78 74 0
Singing Arrow 14 8 a B8O 0 78 74 0
Trumbull
Infant 14 6 0 0 0 0 o 0 0
Toddler 14 ] 0 0 56 0 54 14 0
Twos 14 8 0 4] 25 0 22 4] 0
Trumbul 42 21 0 o] 81 0 76 14 0
Waestern Trail
Infant i4 8 o o 47 0 48 33 0
.'I'oddler 14 a [ 0 95 Q 87 73 0
Western Trail 28 16 o 1] 142 0 135 106 0
City Of Albuguerque EHS 182 100 o o 812 0 787 807 0
Report Totals 182 100 4] [ 81z 0 787 607 0

Report Format Copyright @ Management Information Technology USA, Inc.




SNIdPIND @

EOT

| %S'T1 s uoneIep,

_TI %S [4 " uMeuwIN

| %S 9 3310\ ey

m %S z FEITHTe)

| %STT s uonepodsuel] ON

%S LE 11 suosedy yieaH
o %S'T 1 ssau|[ mso._mMEou
%01 t <uelg>

WlEEL | %ET0E

T

Lt

%9E'98 6T anoyy waey

%606 4 .r ﬂommom yyeaq

%S5t ml ) ...EwEE..o&«. anias [euawdojaaag
%0 [ <jue|g>

—— e —
. I3|ppo) ‘WooIsselT

uMOUNUT)

3304 Waleyd

SUDSEIY YIEIH

ssaur snowbejuoy

<jue|g>

e

S TAA
riolL

mﬂcou‘.nm Wasalg [210] 1 uﬂecmu.& wucmﬁq_ﬂo._. m B.._oma‘_n.

PRl o

{puD) suoseay aJuasqy - 60£Z

 uejupiwooissep

s

%:ou m:n.mmwm wucwmm< tonmx

w it - (i b Fa s

.* | sse|p Jad uoseay Y110 % ._. :ommux bm ﬁ.o__. _ uosesy

T AYEOLL
6LOZ121TL



SNIdPIND &

%1908

ELT

sl

2oy ey

Qo

SUQSERY yieaH

<juejg>

HL0ES

WEEOF

= w_vuo._. Eug.wmm_u

e S

uoneIRA

umouyun

a0y ey

IR0

supseay YieaH

<juejg>

HILSE

e E:mt: Eoo._mmm_u

e

S8 ES ug _oocum .E_m

BYo

USIA Judsed [@IPOISAD-UON

suoseay YyeaH

<jue|g>

i moz. 15 Eoo._mm.m_u
T €D

uMmOUNUM

anoy) Jualed

BLYRo

suoseay YHeaH

<ueg>

Lm_ﬁuo 1 Eoo.ﬁmm

R e ) G i s A T
mﬂ:wu,.& chﬂ( leo) _ sjuasag !n__mmoa _Soh _ ?m:mxécmn!.m.amn_

L - e -Sl..f.r

mmw_u g woucomn«. *0 # _ mmm_u hom commwg .._umm_ ,6 % ﬂ commmx hwn_ _Bo L

(puD) sunseay soussqV - GOEZ 610Z/2rE)



SNIdPIYD &

f
f
|
I

1t

g umouun
%606 1 BYO
%9E9E ¥ ssau|ff snoibeuo)
o

<jue|g>

10y aey

SUDseay yeaH

<juejg>

REFTL

L5 BE

ZI1

~ 13|pPO] W00.sse|D

H o

UMOURUN

30y Waied

R0

uonepodsues} oN {

suoseay YIesH

ssaup snoibejuoly

<juelg>

Ualiad Juasald je10]

svised
Fioe

abeyuadiad a3udsqy |E10L

SuasaL AqISSOd je10)

55| Jad S9IUASqY JO #

(puD) suoseay 32uUasqY - GOEZ

SSE|] 194 UOSEdY LI 4O %

uoseay Jad |30l

UOSEdY

TV EDLL
sL0Z/2IZL



sNIdPIUD @

L 22013 JuaJeg
1 BYI0

¥ suoseay WeaH
¥

T

5
:
3
:

ssauy|] snotbeiuod)

<jue(g>

e e e e T PR e R T T T— T T m
R B P W LE s  sepp

i)

umouyun

1
ET 3210yD aled
o1

et suoseay yieay M

<queg>

——— - "

WoOoIsse|D

i

SSB|) 134 UOSeay YR JO % | UOSEdY J3d [EI0) uoseay

- —

uadiad Juasald [E10L | @ sjuasalg 3[qIssod [B1oL | (ebuey up uadp $5€|0) Jad SAIUISAY 3O #
2 : . - WY £0:L 1

[ 7ASTA]
ylo¥ {puDy} suoseay] asussqy - GOLZ 610221




12/2/2019

11:00 AM City Of Albuquerque EHS Page1of1

- £25745
2301 - Average Daily Attendance
Program Term: EHS 2019 - 2020, Program Opticn: Standard Full Day, Attendance Date: 11/1/2019 - 11/30/2019

City Of Albuquerque EHS

Attendance Records Operating Funded Enroliment Actual Enroliment
Present1 Absentﬂ Neither Days ADA '| Count |% Attendance Count?{% Attendance®

Douglas MacArthur 149/ 52| 0  14.00(avg) 1064 16 66.52% 14.36] 74.13%
La Mesa 59 40 0 14.00 (avg) 4.21] 8 52.68% 7.07 59.60%
Plaza Feliz 150 43 1 14.00 (avg_) 10.71] 16 66.96% 13.79 71.72%
School On Wheels 164 45 [+ 14.00 (avg) 11.72.._ 16 73.21% 14.93 78.47%
Singing Arrow 80 32 0 14.00 (avg) 5.71 8 71.43% 8.00 71.43%
Trumbull 200 16 0 14.00 (avg) 14.28; 24 59.52% 15.43 92,59%
Western Trail 182 41 0 14.00 (avg) 13.00| 16 81.25% 15.93 81.61%
City Of Albuquerque EHS 984 269 1 14.00 (avg) 70.27 104 67.58% 89.51 78.53%

Report Totals 984 269 1 14.00 (avg} 70.27 104 67.58% 89.51 78.53%

1. ADA for each clasroom is the sum of statuses selected to count as 'Present’ on the setup screen divided by the Operating Days for that classroom,
2. Actual Enrollment Count for each classroom is the sum of the Present and Absent columns divided by the Operating Days

3. Percent Attendance is the Present count divided by the sum of Present and Absent Count

4. Site totals for ADA, Funded Enralliment Count, and Actual Enrollment count are the sum of that count for each of the site's classrooms.

5. Statuses counted as Present: Present(P}, Present Offsite{PO), Tardy(T), Left Early(LE). Tardy and Left Early(TLE}

6. Statuses counted as Absent: Absent(A), Excused(E), Unexcused(U)

7. Statuses counted as Neither: No Class (-}, Not Scheduled (N)

2 ChildPlus



VO LLS'SSE  § uojsiaAss ejqissod
o%g jueds Japup) 00°906'v¥
%P ag pinoys 00295'5.8')
%EE % jJuaLngy
%8EEE ¥2°885'6¥Z | 91'£26'629 B TP'S9L'e6 06'0VZ'9EL 99 6ZL'BEL LL'6TF'0ZL  L0°80Z'ZEL  00°Z9S'SIS8'L TYLOL ANVHD
i0/AIQ# E E - E & E - & - 2301 SNOLLOVENVIL ONNJHILNI 65
i0/AI0# : S 5 S1S09 LOJdIONI OLLEES
i0/AIO# (0t'62) [T B D E & 0r'62 g SIOYYHD FDIANIS TYNHILNI IVLOL 65
0/AIQ# E E E STINTDLINW IT1DIHIA LPOPES
HOIAIOH {ov'62) Ov'62 0’62 g FONVYNILNIVA-OLNW ITDIHIA LEOFES
I0/AIO# & E & G & B & & E AVILNO TYLIdVD TWLOL €5
i0/NIO# S S E CLNY NYHL ¥3HL0 JINDI/HOVIN 00SELS
0/ - S OLNY NYHL ¥3H1O dINDIHIVIN 000EES
I0/AIOH G - & SIHNLINHLS ¥IHLO ANY ONIQTING 000LES
%2562 10°258°TL £6°0L5'0E & 2L1L06'9 60°29Z'} 0L20Z'9 TLSL0EL  OLEZL'E 00°89€°50L STANLUANIAXI ONILYHILO TV.LOL 25
OINIO# 5 E e S35V ONY S 1VLNTd -SDAS 06525
%LL'ES 00°2£2°S) 00'€2L'LL 05'SPE'S 05221l 00GS 00°000°€E SAIIAYIS TVNLIVHLINOD 005.25
ioIna# (rz'eoe’d) ¥Z'€9€'2 $Z'095 00°264°L e ANIYW/SHIVA3Y 008EZS
iIAICH S C S SdIHSHIAWIW/SIANG 00FETS
I0/AICH (00°0LL"L) 00'0LL') 00°0LL'L S wHINID - ONINIVEL 000£25
i0/AIO#H - e ONINIVHL 0D0EZS
i0/AI0# (Zeeov's) TL697') ZT'955 00'66L 70192 TrL8z 90¥91 e (31v1S NIYI0T) 1IAYYL 015225
I0/AIC# (sg0) £5'0 550 o I9VLSOd 090226
%9604 58'852'2C S Z6'0SY 00'155 £T6EL) 00°000'62 SIDIAYIS INFUVd SANddNS $S0Z2ZS
i0INIO# - . Q004 s3NddNS 20225
%EL L PZ've6'2E 94 °E8E'Y zoeR0'y ¥6'662 00'896'4€ $317ddNS 000228
i0/AIGH# (15612} 15'6LZ 615 98'vS 98'vS 98'vG dINB3 ANY OAS WODITAL v#5125
0/AIOH e - S3LILN 005128
i0/NIOH e - ONILYDI1HNA B ONLLNIYD 0LOLES
i0/AI0# (0o'o0s) 00005 00°005 $30IA83S TYNOISSI IO 005025
%00°0 00°000'8 & 00'000'8 S$3IIAY3S ¥IHLO 0001LZS
%L e 95°Z0L'G6E PYPEPOZ E 1S'SLE'LE ZELEG Oy  S1'E0S'SE ¥6L29'LE  TEBO6'EY _ 00°ipS'009 JONIEL TVLOL 1S
i0/ANIGH E E E Od- AYIA0D3Y FONIYS 666615
0/AQH (o1'88:'2) 91'982'L L1181 LHLL) 20°62L') 80°9EP'L  9L0L9'L FYvS HLTYIH 3341034-9/4 004516
%128l 86'GPEQL TOETT'Y 25'9¢9 0.°856 9G'Gv6 80°LLL 9L'506 0069522 34171 21SvE 830 Z0951S
%68"LE ¥0'ZSL') 96'890'L oLt £°082 1£'822 sv'6LlL 86'2€¢ 00'128'C SNA/LNIWIIAOTWINN F30 LOYSLS
%62 €E 88'££2'891 ¥1'ZV6'ES 96'622'24 £O'VED'6L  ¥EEEE'BL BSELY'SE  £6'C96'Z 00°941°252 $1143NIT JTAOIIWT HIHLC 0D9SLS
%28 62 ST'5L0'89 $2'626°82 SE6'9ZP'Y Z0°615'9 ¥EFIE'D 16'968's  1p29Z'9 00'600'L6 YOI 008%LS
%16 '£80' 26884 LZPE6'LL LZEIB'L LpG ‘608" ‘£L8° '9/6'522 YM3Id 00kbLS
%PEEE 19'950°182 6£'885'06¢ E 6189209 68°SEP'R8 1egzo'le Gp'SEL'69  SOSPL'S8 00Tip9'Lil’L  SIOVM TV.IOL 0§
OIAICO# (spval) SV ¥9. 00251 99°301 19°S0E 06 F9L LEEE = IWILHIAC L0E00S
%000 00029'29 e 00'029'29 AYYHOdWAL 102005
ornQ# (zz'op) A 8161 oz & Avd TIWNONITIE $E100S
IOIANIQ# {g£-950'9)) ££'950°91 S9'ZI0'T YT LLE'E Pr652'E S1'280'c SEGLLE - ADNISH3NI GNV IS SZL00S
rAIGH (P1°106'2)) #1L°106'Z) 0S'LP'Y LovZL STLLVY £2'60¢ S5'2LTE S S3ONISEY Qivd YIAHLO 0Z100S
0/AO# {r2'sov'6L) v2'GOF'6L £TPSe'e £S6EL'E 66'¥66'Z 8¢'€S6'C 19'€28's e NOILVIYA G1 100G
OIAIC# {0g"190's) 0£'190'G 05'LS GL165 rro9L'e 19°252'2 0 SIOVM ALIASDONOT 01 1L00S
%TE 0E TYLTLELL 81°'66T'9EE ___lgoszies SE'I6Z08  LIPEO'SL 5000’09 89°120'0L 00 LZO'60M'L S3OVM HYINOIH L0L00S
T aaaNad¥a  3ONVIvE  S3ISN3IXE M3GW2030 ¥ISWSAON  ¥3EAOLO0 =7
! % ONINIVWIN QLA T 2

SIHNLIONIHXI LNVHO
(0S¥E9LE) TWHIAT 0Z0ZA - WYHOO0Ud LYVLISOVIH ATV
ANIWLEYAIA STINAYIS ALINNANOD ANV ATINVY



LE'S20'CL ¢ UOISIoAR) B|qISSOd

%62 jueds Jepupn

%ePk ag pinoys honrcmuamm ul mm..::v:maxm ON

%»El o, Juaung

%SSCL 8¥'0.Z'6E 25°'SE9'S E 69°699') 9S¥LL'L - ££°220°T  ¥6'8LL 00°906'vP TYLOL ANVYD

%SS Tl 8P 0LZ'6E 25'589'S G 69'699'L 95 viL'L G £LTL0T  ¥6'8LL 00906°v¢  SIUNLIANILXT ONILVHILO TVLIOL 2§
i0/NIOH S s 0Ll QNAd - 1.NO HOOI OLLEBS

%00°0 00°000'6Z s 00°000'sZ SIADIAYIS TWNIDVHINOD 005425
0/NIQE e = LINIVIW/SHIVd3Y 008E2S
I0/AIOE . & INIVIW/SHIVAIY 008E2S
io/nIa# e s SdIHSYIaWIW/SINA DOPEZS

%.G'E 00LEL'Y 00'sL1 00'GLL 00'906't ONINIVHL 000£TS
I0/AIa# e = (31¥1S NINYO0T) 13AVEL DLSZZS

%L LY 80°'€12'S 26'98.'y 69°699'L 95 vLLL L9ZYE'L 00°000°0L ISNIAIXI-1IAVYL 006225
0INGHE C - 39V1S0d 090225
0/AIO# e & SIDNAUIS LNIYVC STNddNS ¥50225
i0/AIQ# e S Qood $3aNddNS 220228
ionIg#  (09°€L9) 09649 99'v5S ¥e'8Ll $31NddNS 000225
jo/nas C & e S1S02 INITAHIYAIWNS 1STM SN 0PSLES

%000 00°000'S S s 00°000'S ONILYDITdNA B ONILNIED 0L0LES

STUNLIANTIXI LNVHO
(159£91€ )} V1 2 1 TVHIA3d 0Z0ZA - WYHDOUd LYVLISAVIH ATV
INIWLNYdad $3DIAYIS ALINNWIWOD ANV ATINVS



T9ZE'YS uojsisAsl 8|qissod 00°2LL'08F
%LL jueds sspup) Byo -
%ZPh 8g pINoys sao|A1es Jusled -
%0¢ % oL mesunop -
way o
[EENT %¥E 0L 6L°962°15€ £1°989'G¥1 - YOOEL'YE  68°50L'6Z 9V LODOE LE906'ST  ELLYE'SZ  00°LLL'0BY TVLOL ONVHD
10/A10% - 28'69¢'LL - TE'CIL'LL - - - - - 12101 SNOLLOVSNYHL ONNJNILNI 65
IAIGH 5 : S S1S03 103dIaNI 011E65
iiAa#  (zesos i) 2e'69¢e'L) 2E'G9E" 2L : S 5 . . S92 QNNJ - LNO SYIJISNYYL S9Z1L6S
IAIGH (0P 2ZL'p) oriZL'P - - 6Z'SEE 9T OrL'L S9ZIE'L  OC6EZ - SIDUYHD IDIANIS TYNUSLNI TVIOL 65
i0/AI0#% E e E STANS-OLNWN ITDIHIA LHOV6S
iornae  (s8'155'1) 68'155'1 S9ZIE'L  02'6ET o AINIVIN 3OISLOO TTIIHIA ZEOPES
iojaa#  (55625'2) SG'GL5'T 62'GE8 9z 0bL') S FONYNILNIVIAFD LN TIDIHIA LEOPES
10/ANG# - - & AVILNO TYLIdVD TYLOL £
g i0/AIOH S E S OLNY NYHL Y3HLO JINDI/HOVIN 00SEES
- e/ (a7 - . e OLMY NYHL H3HLO dINDIAMHIVIN 000EES
S i0/AIQ# S g g STUNLONYLS HIHLO ONY SNIATING 000LES
062'8. %EL'E 10085291 66'GLE'Y) - 0b'L82 L1L86'9 69°L02'T G60'SSE'Z OSZYP'Z 00096921 SIUNLANILXE ONILVHELO Y101 Z6
e %000 00°000°GE E 00°000°S1 S$IDIAYIAS TYNLOVHLINOD 005.25
/A - - e LNIYW/SHIVdIY 009625
imag  (ooeiz) 0o'eLE 00'0¥1 00'ZE} SdIHSYIANIW/SINA 00PETS
W0/naH - - g ONINIVYL 000E2S
%0L°EL LLSPE'D 68'¥59 YepLL 6T1EL 9l'L6E (zZL'1g) L8y 00°000'S (0052Zs) (3LVLS NIFTY201) T3AVYL 0LSETS
io/nas (evest) 6168} SG°L) 91z £P'EL S8z A9YLSOd 090225
LF)E iornag  (€1-gez's) £1'9e2's 89216 Z5150°) S6P0E’L 869961 SIADIA¥AS INIHVd SANDJINS PE0ZZS
£v2'9 iornas  (egezL') £EECL') z92eo 95°22T S'89¢ aoo04 s3Ndd4ns Z£02Ts
DES'OY %68'9 SEPSS'LE o1l 95°2L1 L0268 S0'E69 1ZTEL0L 00°925'86 S3NddNS 000225
IAIQE e e $1509 3NITASYWNNS LSIM SN 0¥SLES
IAIQR - = DIHLD313 SAILNLN - 015125
00°205'8S 00°ZEL L 00'Z¢) 00'+£9'8S $3DIAY3S ¥IHLO 000LZS
[FERT %L2'SE ZL'S6¥°S9 82'269'5¢ & 95°165'S TL'0EQ'L L5 65E'8 08°002'2 6ZFPSL  0088L'LOL  IONINd TYIOL IS
28971 %eT 9t 16655¢C E06LF F 08'0ET GI'E62 SL'ESE 25282 WYIE 00'6E0°F 3uVO HL1vaH 3391134-8/4 00515
io/ma#  (ZL1v) rANME T} P561L 00'L7) or'all LS rbt 19451 3411 2ISV8 930 Z0951S
%P6 e SE'6LE 51561 ¥9'82 €8T SLSh £6°GE orer 00'64% SNA/LNIWITAOTIWINN T30 L09SLS
Z08'tL %ED'LE SHEIR LT 5156821 91'100'2 Z6'ELS'2 69'226'2 YZOPLT  PLVEM'ZT  00'B9L'OP SLI43N39 3FAOTIWI YIHLO 009616
i430# %96 ¥E ZE'8r0'0L 89°LOF'S 48] ££°290°} 89'162'L LOYS0'L  vZOPLL 00OSP'SL vOId 00841
Z66'LL %ELLE SPIE'ST 51086'71 Or'6EE'2 68'S96'C ¥'045'E B6'EE6'T  EFOIL'E  DO'SSEOF vo3d 00vFLS
296'68 %0L°9¢ 98" 1p8° 121 PLIZL L & 9£°0ZS"' L1 18'TS9'FL  08'¢69°LL LE8ESFL  ©ZSILLGL  00°696°L0Z  SIOVM TWLOL 05
£02 i0/AIG#E (92 £02) 82 £0Z 1E 62 I6°CL1 E AWILY3A0 LOE0DS
e /A0 e S e : AHYHOJIWAL 102008
= i0/AI0% o & g JWIL AXNMNI 0E100S
L48'E /A% (PBOLE'E) ¥8018'c ¥0°'9ES £'9E8 6'SES') 19'522 Frafis) . ADNIOHUIWI ANV MIIS STLOO0S
§152 io/maE  (0Lv1s') 0L'VIS'E 8£'858 0Z 288 50'92 L0EYL E S3ONIASAY Qivd HIHLO 0Z100S
1118 io/aIaE (08 LLLE) 0SLiL'E 1202 £1°992°L 99'9/9'} PeELT 9 00r o NOILVIVYA §LL00S
21} /A0 (PEe0P')) £'80t'L 6Z'ErP v6'68% (AN-FL e SIOYM ALIAIONOT 0LLOOS
£5Z'8L %06"0€ ZE'T96'6EL 89'901'Z9 £2'501°04 LE0SSZ  SLE6TL 96'BGE'El  EWEIVEL  00'696'L0Z SIDVYM HYINDIY LOLOOS

- S3SNad

e e |

]
ANNOJ2Y

ONINIPWIY P ST T P e s

STUNLIANTAXS HOLVYIN
(ZSYE9LE ) TYHIATD 0Z0ZAL - NVHOO0Hd LYYLISAVIH ATV
LNINLYYdIA S3IIAYIS ALINNWNOD ANY ANV



City of Albuguerque Early Head Start Code of Conduct

As a condition of employment, employees are required to comply with the provisions of the City of
Albuquerque Merit System Ordinance, Labor Management Relations Ordinance, Conflict of Interest
Ordinance, Personnel Rules and Regulations, Executive Orders and Administrative Instructions and all
relevant laws, statutes, ordinances, regulations and collective bargaining agreements governing
1994}, the Code of Conduct, Section 301, below, shall further govern the conduct of employees and if
violated shall be grounds for disciplinary action including, but not limited to, termination, demotion,
suspension or reprimand.

Additionally, Early Head Start employees are required to comply with the standards of conduct set forth
by the Head Start Performance Standards (1302.90 (c) (1) and New Mexico State Child Care licensing
rules and regulations 8.16.2.24. Violation shall be grounds for disciplinary action including, but not
limited to, termination, demotion, suspension or reprimand.

City of Albuquerque
301. CODE OF CONDUCT

301.1 Duty to the Public (March 5, 2005)

The City of Albuquerque is a public service institution. In carrying out their assigned duties and
responsibilities, employees must always remember their first obligation is to the public’s safety and
well-being. This obligation must be carried out within the framework of federal, state and local laws.
Employees shall serve the public with respect, concern, courtesy and responsiveness, recognizing service
to the public is the reason for their employment. Telephone calls, correspondence or other
communications should be answered promptly or referred to appropriate individuals for timely action. It
is recognized it is not always possible to fulfill all of the requests of the general public, however,
employees are required to handle all requests and ingiries courteously, fairly, impartially, efficiently
and effectively.

301.2 Professional Excellence

Employees are encouraged to strive for personal and professional excellence as a means of keeping
current on relevant issues and administering the public’s business with professional competence,
efficiency and effectiveness.

301.3 Standards of Conduct

Employees shall in all instances maintain their conduct at the highest personal and professional
standards in order to promote public confidence and trust in the City and public institutions and in a
manner that merits the respect and cooperation of co-workers and the community. Employees shall not
use insulting, abusive or offensive language or actions toward the public or co-workers. Ethnic or sexist
jokes, slurs and other comments or actions that might embarrass or offend others are prohibited.
Employees shall not harass others by making sexual advances, by creating an intimidating or offensive
working environment, or by making false accusations regarding such conduct. Display of visual materials
that may be sexually or racially offensive is also prohibited. Employees shall not have in their possession
during assigned work hours, including lunch periods, in any facility, vehicle or work site, illegal drugs,
alcohol, drug paraphernalia, weapons or explosives, unless directly related to their city responsibilities.
Additionally, employees may not use any product for other than its intended manufactured use.



Employees are responsible for notifying their immediate supervisor in writing of a conviction, entry of a
“no contest” plea or imposition of a sentence if the infraction relates to the position held by the
employee. Misdemeanor convictions will be considered based on job relatedness.

301.4 Equal Employment Opportunity

Employees shall comply with the provisions of Title VIl of the United States Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended, the State of New Mexico Human Rights Act, as amended, the City of Albuquerque Human
Rights Ordinance and the City of Albuquerque Affirmative Action Plan. While not all inclusive, these laws
and the Affirmative Action Plan legitimize the concept of merit, qualifications and performance in
selection and career advancement and prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex,
national origin or ancestry, age, physical or mental disability and Vietnam Era or disabled veteran status,
sexual orientation and medical condition.

301.5 Violence in the Workplace

Workplace violence by employees is prohibited. Violent behavior directed toward a City employee by a
member of the public shall not be tolerated. Prohibited workplace behavior includes intimidation,
verbal threats, physical assault, vandalism, arson, sabotage, the unauthorized display, possession or use
of weapons in the workplace, jokes or comments regarding violent acts which are reasonably perceived
to be a threat, or any other behavior reasonably perceived to be a threat of imminent harm against an
employee or member of the general public.. An employee who withesses or is the subject of prohibited
behaviors must report the incident to their immediate supervisor unless the supervisor is the one
exhibiting the prohibited behavior, in which case the employee shall report the behavior to the next
highest person within the organization. A supervisor receiving the complaint must conduct an
investigation of the incident and initiate appropriate action to eliminate the prohibited behavior. The
supervisor shall prepare a written response to the employee reporting the incident. This response shall
include an acknowledgment of the employee’s complaint, a description of the investigation conducted,
and the action that was initiated to eliminate the prohibited behavior. Employees engaging in any
prohibited behavior may be subject to mandatory referral for psychological/psychiatric evaluation,
counseling or mediation, arrest and prosecution, and/or disciplinary action up to and including
termination from City employment. Refer to applicable Administrative Instructions for further guidance.

301.6 Report of Abuse {March 5, 2005}

During the course of husiness, employees may become aware of instances of abuse of equipment,
facilities, programs, city driving privileges, or other areas of official City business. As employees become
aware of these instances, they are to report these events to their immediate supervisor or directly to
their department director. If an employee fails to report such events and it is determined later through
an investigation that an employee had knowledge of the situation, the employee may be subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

301.7 Weapons

It is strictly prohibited for any employee, other than sworn law enforcement officers, to possess firearms
{(including handguns, regardless of any authorized permit); explosives or dangerous weapons on City
premises, in City property or at City sponsored events. City premises include worksites and vehicles
{owned, rented or leased), parking garages and parking lots. The City may conduct searches when there



is a reason to believe that a person is in possession of a firearm including handguns, (regardless of any
authorized permit), explosives or any other weapon, device, instrument or substance, which in the
manner it is used or intended to be used, is capable of producing death or serious bodily injury. Any
violation of this policy, including a refusal to consent to a search, will subject an employee to disciplinary
action up to and including termination of employment.

301.8 Safety (March 5, 2005)

Employees are responsible for performing assigned duties in the safest possible manner, using all
available safety measures and devices to prevent injury to themselves, coworkers or the general public
and to report unsafe equipment, materials, or conditions to their supervisor and the Risk Management
Division. Because human dignity and the personal safety of each employee are of utmost importance,
dangerous practical jokes, horseplay, and roughhouse activities are prohibited in the workplace.

301.9 False Statements/Fraud

No employee shall willfully make any false statement, certificate, mark, rating or.report in regard to any
test, certification, appointment or investigation, or in any manner commit any fraud, conceal any
wrongdoing or knowingly withhold information about wrongdoing in connection with employment with
the City or in connection with the work-related conduct of any City employee.

301.10 Bribery, Gifts and Donations

No individual seeking appointment to, or promotion in the service of the City shall, either directly or
indirectly, give, render or pay any money, service or othér valuable thing to any person for, or on
account of, or in connection with, a test, appointment, proposed appointment, promotion or any
personnel action. Payments to licensed employment agencies are exempted. No reward, favor, gift, or
other form of payment in addition to regular compensation and employee benefits shall be received by
any employee for the performance or nonperformance of their duties from any vendor, contractor,
individual or firm doing business with the City or who can reasonably anticipate doing business with the
City in the future, or from any.other source having or proposing to have any relationship with the City of
Albuquerque. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit an occasional, nonpecuniary gift,
insignificant in value; an award publicly presented in recognition of public service, participation in
community events; acts of heroism or for solving of crimes; nor does it apply to a commercially
reasonable loan made.in the ordinary course of business by an institution authorized by the laws of the
State to engage in the business of making loans.

301.11 City Funds

Employees are personally accountable for City money over which they have possession or control. All
employees who are in control of City funds must maintain accurate and current records of all such
funds. Employees must comply with all policies, practices, and procedures promulgated by the
Department of Finance and Administrative Services and approved by the Chief Administrative

Officer and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles regarding the receipt,
recording and disbursement of public monies.

301.12 City Property



Employees are responsible for preventing loss, damage, abuse, misuse or theft of City property or
property entrusted to the City including, but not limited to: artifacts, vehicles, equipment, tools, supplies
and City records. All City property should be used only for City business. City property may not be used
for personal gain or profit. Office furniture, fixtures, vehicles and equipment including lockers

and storage units are the property of the City or contain property of the City. The City has the right of
access to such items at any time as determined necessary by the supervisor.

301.13 City Records and Accounting

All City records, including reports, vouchers, requisitions, payroll and personnel records must be
prepared factually and accurately. It is the personal obligation of the employee completing such recards
as well as the supervisor to ensure that such records are accurate and comply with federal, state, and
City record-keeping and accounting requirements.

301.14 Telephone Usage

City telephones are for official business use only and will be used in a professional manner. Abusive,
threatening or obscene phone calls are strictly prohibited. Use of City telephones for personal calls
during office hours is discouraged. A supervisor may permit the employee to make occasional calls if
they do not interfere with the work duties and responsibilities of the employee, departmental
operations, performance or services to the public. Personal use of City telephones for-toll or long
distance calls is strictly prohibited unless the call is charged to the employee’s personal credit card or
home telephone. Employees are responsible for ensuring that toll or long distance calls made for
legitimate business purposes are appropriately and accurately documented.

301.15 Automated Systems

All automated systems, including electronic mail; Internet usage, software and hardware are for official
City business. All users will conduct themselves in a legal, professional and ethical manner. All
automated systems are valuable and must be protected from misappropriation, abuse, misuse, theft,
fraud, loss and unauthorized use or disposal. Misappropriation of computer time, hardware or software
includes, but is not limited to, using a computer to create or run unauthorized jobs, operating a
computer.in an unauthorized made or intentionally causing any kind of operational malfunction or
failure. Employees are required to terminate processing from their terminals/PCs using standard log-off
procedures when not in use to prevent unauthorized use of such equipment. Employees are required to
report violations or. suspected violations to their department director or, if the computer is under the
control of the Information Systems Division {ISD), to the Chief Information Officer. Employees shall not
use City computer time, hardware or software for any personal gain or profit. Employees are required to
comply with all policies, practices, and procedures promulgated by the Department of Finance and
Administrative Services and approved by the Chief Administrative Officer regarding the use and security
of automated systems. As used in this section, automated system and/or computer shall mean the City's
mainframe computer and peripheral equipment, any terminal or desktop computer, which
communicates with a computer, network or mainframe and any standalone personal computers.

301.16 Privileged Information



Employees shall protect privileged information to which they have access in the course of their official
duties. Employees or former employees shall not disclose or use confidential information acquired
through their employment with the City for the employees or another’s personal gain or profit.

301.17 Supervision of Employees (March 5, 2005)

Employees with supervisory duties or responsibilities shall, in all instances, ensure that all supervisory
actions comply with the provisions of the Merit System Ordinance, Labor-Management Relations
Ordinance, Personnel Rules and Regulations, Administrative Instructions, City Operator’'s Permit,
Substance Abuse Policy, applicable legislation, and relevant judicial/administrative decisions.

301.18 Sales by Employees

Employees are required to direct their attention to their duties and responsibilities during work hours.
No employee shall conduct or operate a personal business, which includes promotion, sales, scheduling
or any related activity during work hours. This includes the sale of goods or services for profit.
Employees may be allowed to conduct limited sales for fund raising activities during their lunch period
or breaks.

301.19 Community Activities

As private citizens, employees may participate in public affairs and community oriented projects as a
means of enhancing City governments’ contribution to the well-being and quality of life of the citizens of
Albugquerque. Employees are responsible for complying with leave policies for activities that occur
during scheduled work hours:

301.20 Direct Deposit
All newly hired employees and reinstated employees are required to receive all employment wages
through direct deposit. An'employee may not begin work prior to complying with this requirement.

Head Start Performance Standards
45 CFR Chapter Xiil 1302.90 PERSONNEL POLICIES

{c) Standards of Conduct

All staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers must abide by the program’s standards of conduct
that:

1} Ensure implementation of positive strategies to support children’s well-being and prevent and
address challenging behavior.

2) Do not maltreat or endanger the health and safety of children, including, at a minimum, that
staff must not:

Use corporal punishment

Use isalation to discipline a child

Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth

Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward

Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate a child

Use any form of emaotional abuse, including public or private humiliation, rejecting,

terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child.

mpoooe



Physically abuse a child

Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or

derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family

i. Use physical activity or outdoor time as punishment or reward

3} Ensure respect and promote the unique identify of each child and family and do not stereotype
on any basis, including gender, race, ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or
family composition.

4) Require compliance with program confidentiality policies concerning personally identifiable
information about children, families, and other staff members in accordance with subpart C of
part 1303.

5) Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers
while under their care.

T @

New Mexico Child Care Licensing
Title 8, Chapter 16, Part 2, 8.16.2.24 SERVICES AND CARE OF CHILDREN IN CENTERS

Written policies and procedures clearly outlining guidance practices will be provided to all parents and
staff who will sign a form to acknowledge that they have read and understand these policies and
procedures.

Guidance will be consistent, age appropriate, and shall be positive and include redirection, clear limits
that encourage the child’s ability to become self-disciplined. The use of physical or mechanical
restraints in prohibited unless due to documented emergencies or medically documented necessity.

The following disciplinary practices are prohibited:

1) Physical punishment of any type, including shaking, biting, hitting, pinching or putting anything
on or in a child’s mouth.

2} Withdrawal of food, rest, bathroom access, or gutdoor activities.

3} Abusive or profane language; including yelling.

4) ' Any form of public or private humiliation, including threats of physical punishment

5} Unsupervised separation.

i have read and understand the code of conduct expectations set forth by the City of Albuquerque, Head
Start Performance Standards, and New Mexico Child Care Licensing. | understand that failure to adhere
to alf or part of the code of conduct shall be grounds for disciplinary action including, but not limited to,
termination, demotion, suspension or reprimand.

Printed Name Signature Date



City of Albuquerque
Family and Community Services Department
Child and Family Development Division
Early Head Start Program
Child Health and Safety - Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting
Program Design and Management

Policy Number: Effective Date:
Agency Approval Date: Policy Approval Date: Governing Board Approval Date:

COMPONENT: Child Health and Safety 1302.47, 1302.92, 1302.15, 1302.90, 1302.41,
1302.42, 1302.461302.53, 1302.63, 1302.70, 1302.71, and Program Design and Management
1302.101, 1302.91, 1302.90, 1302.91, 1302.21, 1303.3; 1302.93, 1302.94, 1302.92, 1301.5

SUBJECT: Reporting Suspected Child Abuse and Neglect

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE: To protect all children enfolled in City of Albuquerque
Early Head Start Program

OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES:

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program recognizes that all permanent staff,
temporary staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers are mandated by law to report instances
of child abuse and neglect.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program will provide annual training in methods for
identifying and reporting child abuse and neglect.

The City.of Albuquerque Early Head Start-Program outlines the procedures for reporting child
abuse and neglect.

Every City of'‘Albuquerque Early Head Start Program employee must read this policy and
procedures prior to beginning employment with the program.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for violation
of the standards of conduct in-the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and Regulations.

REPORTING POLICY:
1. Abuse, neglect or unsupervised child occurs or is suspected to occur.
2. Report of abuse, neglect or unsupervised child is provided to the Head Teacher and
Education Specialist immediately.
a. If Head Teacher or Education Specialist are not available, submit report to the
Program Director.

b. If the Program Director is not available, submit report to the Division Manager.
c. If the Division Manager is not available, submit report to the Deputy Director.

3. All staff involved in the incident must complete an incident report immediately.

12/12/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Policy



4. The Head Teacher will notify parents via phone immediately and via writing using the
incident/accident report by the end of the day.

5. The Program Director and staff will report the incident to the New Mexico Children,
Youth and Families Department within 24 hours.

6. The Program Director and staff will report to the National Association for the Education
of Young Children (NAEYC), if applicable, within 72 hours.

7. The Program Director and staff will report to the Office of Head Start within three days,
if applicable.

8. The Program Director and Division Manager will report to Policy Council and Governing
board within 3 days.

9. It is the responsibility of the CPS/SCI and/or local law enforcement to confirm or rule out
suspected abuse or neglect. It is the responsibility.of these agencies to ensure the safety
and welfare of the child/children after the report’has been made.

Training: All City of Albuquerque Early Head Start permanent staff; temporary staff,
consultants, contractors and volunteers will receive training regarding Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting policies and procedures. New staff will receive training as part of orientation and will
sign a statement acknowledging receipt of training. Training will be provided to all staff on an
annual basis and all new staff prior to working in a classroom.

Ongoing Monitoring: Continuous quality monitoring of Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting
will take place by the Program Manager and Division Manager with every incident to ensure
processes and procedures were followed accordingly.

Penalties: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for
violation of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and
Regulations.

A COPY OF THIS POLICY AND PROCEDURES MUST BE POSTED IN ALL CITY OF
ALBUQUERQUE EARLY HEAD START CLASSROOMS.

12/12/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Policy



City of Albuquerque
Family and Community Services Department
Child and Family Development Division
Early Head Start Program
Child Health and Safety - Child Health and Safety
Program Design and Management

Policy Number: Effective Date:
Agency Approval Date: Policy Approval Date: Governing Board Approval Date:

COMPONENT: Child Health and Safety 1302.47, 1302.92, 1302.15, 1302.90, 1302.41,
1302.42, 1302.46, 1302.47, 1302.92, 1302.15, 1302.90, 130241, 1302.42, 1302.46 and Program
Design and Management 1302.101, 1302.102, 1302.91, 1302.90, 1302.91, 1302.21, 1303.3,
1302.93, 1302.94, 1302.92, 1301.5

SUBJECT: Child Health and Safety Policy

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE: To protect all children enrolled in City of Albuquerque
Early Head Start Program.

OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES:
The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program will ensure that no child is left alone or

unsupervised by permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers while
under their care.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program will ensure all permanent staff, temporary
staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers abide by the program’s standards of conduct.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines the procedures for reporting child
abuse and neglect.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for violation
of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and Regulations.

Every City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program employee must read and sign this policy
and procedures prior to beginning employment with the program.

Active Supervision: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start utilizes active supervision
strategies for supervising infants and toddlers in the following settings: grantee classrooms, field
trips and socializations, and on playgrounds and school busses. The program utilizes six active
supervision strategies to create an effective approach to child supervision (See Active
Supervision Policy).

The following strategies allow children to explore their environments safely while ensuring that
infants and toddlers are supervised at all times and never left unattended:

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



Set up the environment
Position Staff

Scan and Count

Listen

Anticipate children’s behavior
Engage and redirect

Standards of Conduct: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start program adheres to the City
of Albuquerque Code of Conduct, Head Start Performance Standards of Conduct, and the New
Mexico Child Care Licensing regulations (See City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Code of
Conduct). In addition, the Early Head Start utilizes the Nurtured Heart Approach focusing on
celebrating each child’s positive behaviors, actions, attitudes, feelings and desired ways of being.
Staff must not:

e

e

8.

9.

Use of corporal punishment

Use isolation to discipline a child

Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth

Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward

Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate a child
Use of any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation,
rejection, terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child

Physically abuse a child

Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or
derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family

Use physieal activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward.

Reporting: Staff will report all instances of child abuse and neglect including any instance of
unsupervised child(ren). (See Reporting Policy and Procedure)

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Immediate supervisor to include completed incident and/or accident report
immediately.

New Mexico CYFD State licensing as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours
after the incident.

Regional Office of Head Start within three days of the incident to include applicable
documentation.

National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC) within 72 hours
for accredited centers.

Policy Council and Governing board within 72 hours.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start staff will report immediately to the responsible HHS
official but no later than three days the following:

1.

2.

Any reports regarding agency staff or volunteer compliance with federal, state, tribal,
or local laws addressing child abuse and neglect or laws governing sex offenders.
Incidents that require classrooms or centers to be closed for any reason.

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque - Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



3. Legal proceedings by any party that tare directly related to program operations.

Training: All City of Albuquerque Early Head Start permanent staff, temporary staff,
consultants, contractors and volunteers will receive training regarding Child Health and Safety
policies and procedures. New staff will receive training as part of orientation and will sign a
statement acknowledging receipt of training. Training will be provided to all staff on an annual
basis and all new staff prior to working in a classroom.

Ongoing Monitoring: Continuous quality monitoring of child health and safety components
will include, but are not limited to:
e Regular classroom visits by management to include Education Specialist,
Program Manager, Division Manager and/or FES leadership.
e Active supervision checklist by management to include Education Specialist,
Program Manager, Division Manager and/or FCS leadership.
» Center checklist by management to include Education Specialist, Program
Manager, Division Manager and/or FCS leadership.
Ratio boards by all classroom permanent and temporary staff;
Sign-in sheets by all classroom permanent and temporary staff.
Daily count sheets by all classroom permanent and temporary staff.
Incident/Accident reports as applicable by all classroom permanent and temporary
staff.

¢ Classroom arrangement diagrams by all classroom permanent and temporary
staff.

Penalties: Appropriate penalties for staff, consultants, and volunteers who violate the standards
of conduct will be imposed in accordance with the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and
Regulations up to and including termination.

A COPY OF THIS POLICY AND PROCEDURES MUST BE POSTED IN ALL CITY OF
ALBUQUERQUE EARLY HEAD START CLASSROOMS.

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



City of Albuquerque
Family and Community Services Department
Child and Family Development Division
Early Head Start Program
Child Health and Safety - Child Abuse and Neglect
Program Design and Management

Policy Number: Effective Date:
Agency Approval Date: Policy Approval Date: Governing Board Approval Date:

COMPONENT: Child Health and Safety 1302.47, 130292, 1302.15, 1302.90, 1302.41,
1302.42, 1302.461302.53, 1302.63, 1302.70, 1302.71, dnd Program Design and Management
1302.101, 1302.91, 1302.90, 1302.91, 1302.21, 1303,3,:1302.93, 1302.94, 1302.92, 1301.5

SUBJECT: Reporting Suspected Child Abuse and Neglect

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE: To protect all children entolled in City of Albuquerque
Early Head Start Program

OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES:
The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program recognizes that all staff are mandated by law
to report instances of child abuse and neglect.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program will provide annual training in methods for
identifying and reporting child abuse and neglect.

The City of Albuquerque Early. Head Start- Program outlines the procedures for reporting child
abuse and neglect.

Every City of Albuquerque Barly Head Start Program employee must read this policy and
procedures prior to beginning employment with the program.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for violation
of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and Regulations.

IF A NON-EMPLOYEE IS SUSPECTED OF ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT:

1. All permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers will receive
annual training on child abuse and neglect indicators and reporting procedures. Staff will
receive a copy of the procedures. A copy of the procedures will be posted in all City of
Albuquerque Early Head Start classrooms.

2. City of Albuquerque Early Head Start policy states that any person who suspects abuse or
neglect must report it IMMEDIATELY (within 24 hours of observation) to the New
Mexico Children, Youth and Families Department, Child Protective Services/Statewide
Central Intake (CPS/SCI). A copy of the report must be provided to the Head Teacher.




6.

When possible, the staff reporting should have a fellow staff person witness the telephone
call to make the report.

The person who has reasonable suspicion that a child has been abused and/or neglected
must also report the incident to their immediate supervisor within 24 hours of
observation.

It is the responsibility of the CPS/SCI and/or local law enforcement to confirm or rule out
suspected abuse or neglect. It is the responsibility of these agencies to ensure the safety
and welfare of the child/children after the report has been made.

Documentation shall be completed with 24 hours of the person making the report using
the Early Head Start reporting suspected child abuse and/or neglect form. A copy of the
form will be provided to the Division Manager.

The report shall be maintained in a locked file cabinet to preserve confidentiality.

WHEN AN EMPLOYEE AND/OR NON-CLIENT FAMILY VOLUNTEER AND/OR
CONTRACTOR (HEREAFTER REFERRED TO AS “STAFF?) 1S ACCUSED AND/OR
SUSPECTED OF ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT OF A CHILD ENROLLED IN ONE OF
THE CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE EARLY HEAD START PROGRAMS, THE
FOLLOWING PROCEDURES ARE IN EFFECT.

1.

(8]

All permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers will receive
annual training on child abuSe and.neglect indicators and reporting procedures. Staff will
receive a copy of the procedures. "Ascopy of the procedures will be posted in all City of
Albuquerque Early Head Start classrooms.
Abuse, neglect or unsupervised child occurs or is suspected to occur.
Report of abuse, neglect or unsupervised child is provided to the Head Teacher and
Education Specialist immediately.
a. If Head Teacher or Education Specialist are not available, submit report to the
Program Director.
b.-If the Program Director is not available, submit report to the Division Manager.
c. If the Division Manager is not available, submit report to the Deputy Director.
All'staff involved in the incident must complete an incident report immediately.
The Head Teacher will notify parents via phone immediately and via writing using the
incident/accident report by the end of the day.
The Program Director and staff will report the incident to the New Mexico Children,
Youth and Families Department within 24 hours.
The Program Director and staff will report to the National Association for the Education
of Young Children (NAEYC), if applicable, within 72 hours.
The Program Director and staff will report to the Office of Head Start within three days,
if applicable.
The Program Director and Division Manager will report to Policy Council and Governing
board within 3 days.

Training: All City of Albuquerque Early Head Start permanent staff, temporary staff,
consultants, contractors and volunteers will receive training regarding Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting policies and procedures. New staff will receive training as part of orientation and will
sign a statement acknowledging receipt of training. Training will be provided to all staff on an
annual basis and all new staff prior to working in a classroom.



Ongoing Monitoring: Continuous quality monitoring of Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting
will take place by the Program Manager and Division Manager with every incident to ensure
processes and procedures were followed accordingly.

Penalties: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for
violation of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and
Regulations. Additionally:

a. Staff accused or suspected of abuse or neglect will be removed from the
classroom during the time of investigation. The staff member removed will be
given the option of working in an administrative position or taking vacation leave.

b. If the incident has occurred that is not of a magnitude to be considered abuse or
neglect by the CPS/SCI, law enforcement and/orNew Mexico Children, Youth
and Families Child Care Licensing), it may nevertheless exhibit poor judgement
on the part of the staff member. The City of Albuquerque-Human Resources
Department may conduct an investigation into the incident to determine whether
poor judgement and/or incompetence on the patt.of the staff member in question
may have occurred. During this investigation, the following may occur:
reassignment of staff members, a period of work shadowing the staff member in
question or staff training. Staff members may be required to complete a work
improvement plan involving additional training in one or more areas, such as
abuse and neglect; appropriate classroom interactions and child growth and
development.

c. Allegations that are proven to be unfounded and unsubstantiated may result in
immediate reinstatement of the staff member to their position.

d. If the allegations of abuse or neglect are substantiated, the staff member will be
disciplined, up to-and including termination. Additionally, repetitive incidents of
lesser magnitude may be grounds for termination of
employment/engagement/contract with the City of Albuquerque Early Head Start
program.

A COPY OF THIS POLICY AND PROCEDURES MUST BE POSTED IN ALL CITY OF
ALBUQUERQUE EARLY HEAD START CLASSROOMS.



City of Albuquerque
Family and Community Services Department
Child and Family Development Division
Early Head Start Program
Program Operations ~ Active Supervision
Program Operations

Policy Number: Effective Date:
Agency Approval Date: Policy Approval Date; Governing Board Approval Date:

COMPONENT: Child Health and Safety 1302.47, 1302.92, 1302.15, 1302.90, 1302.41,
1302.42, 1302.46, 1302.47, 1302.92, 1302.15, 1302.90,1302.41,.1302.42, 1302.46

SUBJECT: Active Supervision Policy

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVE: To protect all children enrolled in City of Albuguerque
Early Head Start Program.

OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES:

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program will ensure that no child is left alone or
unsupervised by permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers while
under their care.

All permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers must follow
appropriate practices to keep children safe during all activities, including, at a minimum
appropriate indoor and outdoor supervision of children at all times.

Every City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program employee must read this policy and
procedures prior to beginning employment with the program.

The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start Program outlines appropriate penalties for violation
of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and Regulations.

Active Supervision: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start utilizes active supervision
strategies for supervising infants and toddlers in the following settings: grantee classrooms, field
trips and socializations, and on playgrounds and school busses. The program utilizes six active
supervision strategies to create an effective approach to child supervision.

The following strategies allow children to explore their environments safely while ensuring that
infants and toddlers are supervised at all times and never left unattended:

1. Set up the environment so staff can supervise children and be accessible at all times.

Furniture will be waist height or shorter and adults are always able to see and hear
children. Every classroom will develop and post a daily classroom schedule for

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



children, teachers, substitutes, and volunteers to ensure a predictable order of events
and routines.

2. Position Staff to see and reach children at all times. Teachers stay close to children
who may need additional support. Staff will determine responsibility for each area or
activity including transitions and outdoor activities.

3. Scan and Count to account for all children frequently. Staff will continuously scan
the environment and be familiar with the location of all children. Staff will
communicate with one another regarding children’s activities and movements. Staff
will count and document the number of children and utilize name to face strategies
regularly throughout the day.

4. Listen to children and the environment to identify signs of potential danger. Staff
will communicate with one another frequently throughout the day, especially when a
staff member moves to a different location. ‘Teachers listen for specific sounds or
absence of sounds that may be cause for concern.

5. Anticipate children’s behavior to provide children additional support, especially
during transitions. Staff will use what they know about each individual child to
predict behaviors and patterns to better protect children from harm.

6. Engage and redirect when children are unable to solve problems independently.
Staff will provide varying levels of assistance and support according to each
individual child’s needs.

Reporting: Permanent staff, temporary staff, consultants, contractors and volunteers will report
all instances of child abuse and neglect including any instance of unsupervised children to: (See
Reporting Policy and Procedure)

1. Immediate supervisor to include completed incident and/or accident report
immediately.

2. New Mexico CYFD State licensing as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours
after the incident.

3. Regional Office of Head Start within three days of the incident to include applicable
documentation.

4. ‘National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC) within 72 hours
for accredited centers.

5. Policy Council and Governing board within 72 hours.

Training: All City of Albuquerque Early Head Start permanent staff, temporary staff,
consultants, contractors and volunteers will receive training regarding Child Health and Safety
policies and procedures. New staff will receive training as part of orientation and will sign a
statement acknowledging receipt of training. Training will be provided to all staff on an annual
basis and all new staff prior to working in a classroom.

Ongoing Monitoring: Continuous quality monitoring of child health and safety components
will include, but are not limited to:

¢ Regular classroom visits by management to include Education Specialist,
Program Manager, Division Manager and/or FCS leadership.

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



e Active supervision checklist by management to include Education Specialist,
Program Manager, Division Manager and/or FCS leadership.

e Center checklist by management to include Education Specialist, Program

Manager, Division Manager and/or FCS leadership.

Ratio boards by all classroom permanent and temporary staff.

Sign-in sheets by all classroom permanent and temporary staff.

Daily count sheets by all classroom permanent and temporary staff.

Incident/Accident reports as applicable by all classroom permanent and temporary

staff.

¢ (Classroom arrangement diagrams by all classroom permanent and temporary
staff.

Penalties: The City of Albuquerque Early Head Start'Program outlines appropriate penalties for
violation of the standards of conduct in the City of Albuquerque Personnel Rules and
Regulations.

A COPY OF THIS POLICY AND PROCEDURES MUST BE POSTED IN ALL CITY OF
ALBUQUERQUE EARLY HEAD START GLASSROOMS.

12/09/19 City of Albuquerque — Early Head Start Program - Child Health and Safety Policy



